TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pray This Prayer if You Would Like to Receive Jesus	3
Worship GOD Because He Is My Creator	4
Worship God Because He Is My Heavenly Father	6
POWERFUL BIBLICAL PRAYERS (PRAYERS FOR HEALING, PROTECTION, SALVATION, PROSPERITY, DIVINE GUIDANCE, ETC.) Prayers To Speak Prophetically Prayers To Speak God's Word Prophetically	7 8
Prayers to Speak Less	10 s
Speak Graciously	11
Prayers To Speak In Faith	12
Powerful Biblical Prayers (Faith-Filled Prayer, Spirit- Filled Prayers, Spirit-Led Prayers, Biblical Prayers, Biblical Prayers, Spirit-Led Prayers, Biblical Praye	ole-
Based Prayers)	
Prayer based on Psalm 51Prayers To Abide In Christ	
Prayers Of Thankfulness Concerning God's Goodness And Generosity	
Powerful Biblical Prayers	
1. Prayers for Joy	
2. Prayers for the Church	
The Passion Of The Church In Seeking God	
The Provision Of God For The Church	
Power OF THE SPIRIT IN THE CHURCH The NAME OF JESUS	
Endurance Of The Church	
Loving God's Word	
Love For God And For Others	
3. Prayers about Speech	25
4. Powerful Prayers	
5. Prayers to Abide in Christ	
6. Prayers to Keep on Track	
7. Prayers for Spiritual Fullness	
Biblical Confessions Of The Word Of God - Confessions of Faith - Powerful Confessions	
Confessions For Victorious Living	
2. Jesus is the Light of my life!	
3. Names and Attributes of God	33

3. Proverbs 12 Confessions	35
4. Proverbs 10 Confessions	36
5. Confessions of Psalm 119	37
6.Who God is to Me	41
7. Confessions of Thanksgiving and Faith	41
8. Promises of God about Prayer	41
9. Commitment to Worship	42
10. Confessions about Focus of Mind	43
11. Confessions about Thought Life	44
12. Confessions about Anger	45
13. Confessions on Forgiving Others	46
14. Resisting Worry, Anxiety, Frustration	48
15. Confessions on Death to Sin	50
16. Putting off the Old Man	51
Confession for the Nations	52
Forgiveness and Healing	52
Against Forces of Darkness	52
The Blood of Jesus	53
Binding and Covering the Nations	53
Prayer for our Leaders	53
Against Idols and Satanic rituals	54
Prayer Against Lawlessness	54
Those Who Protect Us and Prosperity	54
Show Mercy and Might in Our Affairs	
Evil Disgraced & Dismantled	55

PRAY THIS PRAYER IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO RECEIVE JESUS

Dear God, thank You for sending Your Son, Jesus, to die for me. Thank You, Jesus, that because You suffered and died in my Place, I can be completely forgiven of all my sins and have eternal life with you forever. Forgive me for everything I have done that is not Your will and Your way for my life.

Cleanse me with Your forgiveness so that I can be free of all guilt, shame, and any sense of failure. I believe that after You were crucified, You rose from the dead and now live in the hearts of all who receive You. I believe "there is no other name under heaven given among men by which we must be saved" (Acts 4:12).

I receive Your love and Your life - to live in me today by the power of Your Holy Spirit. Help me to live in a way that is always pleasing in Your sight, so that I can be all You created me to be. All glory be to Your name and "let the God of my salvation be exalted" (Psalm 18:46).

PRAYERS OF PRAISE AND WORSHIP TO GOD - I WORSHIP GOD BECAUSE HE IS MY CREATOR, HEAVENLY FATHER, HE LOVES ME, HE SAVED ME.

WORSHIP GOD BECAUSE HE IS MY CREATOR

Lord, I worship You as the Creator of heaven and earth. All things made by You and everything You created is good. I praise You for all our beautiful creation. You placed the earth on its foundation so that it can never be moved (Psalm 104:5). Your mighty right hand stretched out the Heavens (Isaiah 48:13). Thank You that You have blessed us with light and dark, sun and rain, food and water, land and sea, trees and flowers, days and seasons. "The heavens are Yours, the earth also is Yours; the world and all its fullness, You have founded them" (Psalm 89:11).

-When I consider your heavens, the work of your fingers, the moon and the stars, which you have set in place, what is man that you are mindful of him, the son of man that you care for him? You made him a little lower than the heavenly beings and crowned him with glory and honor. You made him ruler over the works of precious your hands; you put everything under his feet" (Psalm 8:3-6 NIV). I know that "both men and women come from God their Creator" (1 Corinthians 11:12 TLB). "How many are your works, O LORD! In wisdom and righteousness, you have made them all; the earth is full of your creatures" (Psalm 104:24 NIV).

O Lord, thank You that You created me and gave me life. "You formed my inward parts; You covered me in my mother's womb" (Psalm 139:13). I praise You, "for I am fearfully and wonderfully made; marvelous are Your works, and that my soul knows very well" (Psalm 139:14). I praise You for every breath I take and thank You that I was created for good things. Help me to be renewed in the image of You, my Creator (Colossians 3:10 NIV). I know You made me to be so much more than I am

now and that You will help me become all You created me to be.

I praise You for the people You have created, each one unique and valuable and carrying in their spiritual DNA a purpose that is distinctive and priceless as well. I am grateful for the potential for good that You have placed within each one. Help me to value others as Your creation and see them the way You do. Thank You, Jesus, that You are "the image of the invisible God, the firstborn over all creation" (Colossians 1:15).

"You are worthy, O Lord, to receive glory and honor and power; for You created all things, and by Your will they exist and were created" (Revelation 4:11). I worship You as my Creator and I praise You for all that You have created.

WORSHIP GOD BECAUSE HE IS MY HEAVENLY FATHER

Heavenly Father, I worship You this day. I am so grateful that You are not a distant or remote Father, but a close and loving one. You are closer to me than an earthly father ever could be. Your love for me is unconditional and everlasting. I know that no father on earth is perfect, but You are. Thank You that as my Father, You care about what happens to me. You provide for me, teach me, plan for my future, supply all my needs, and because You love me You will never let me get away with disobedience to Your rules. Thank You that "You have given me the heritage of those who fear Your name; and I have inherited great and eternal riches from You (Psalm 61:5)." Lord, you alone are my portion and my cup; you make my lot secure. The boundary lines have fallen for me in pleasant places; surely I have a delightful inheritance." (Psalm 16:5-6 NLT).

Lord, help me to forgive my earthly father for anything he did or did not do. Show me if there is anything I have not forgiven that I am not seeing. I don't want my lack of forgiveness to stand in the way of my intimate relationship with You. As Your child, I long to make You proud. Help me to always do what is pleasing in Your sight. I want to be separate from all that would keep me separated from You (2 Corinthians 6:17-18). Thank You that I have been predestined to be adopted. as Your child through Jesus because it gives You pleasure and it is Your will for my life (Ephesians 1:5). I praise and honor You as my Father God and give thanks always for all things, especially Your Father's love (Ephesians 5:20).

POWERFUL BIBLICAL PRAYERS (PRAYERS FOR HEALING, PROTECTION, SALVATION, PROSPERITY, DIVINE GUIDANCE, ETC.)

PRAYERS TO SPEAK PROPHETICALLY PRAYERS TO SPEAK GOD'S WORD PROPHETICALLY

Father, I pray that when I speak, I speak truly as the very words of God. (1 Peter 4:11)

Father, this is your covenant with me as I turn from sin: Your Spirit, who is upon me, and Your words which you have put in my mouth, shall not depart from my mouth, nor from the mouth of my descendants ... from this time forth and forevermore. (Isaiah 59:21) Father, I pray that I not speak my own words. (Isaiah 58:13)

Lord Jesus, I don't want to speak from myself. That would be for my own glory. You sent me, and I am seeking your glory. I want to be totally true, and with no unrighteousness in me. (John 7:18)

Holy Spirit, teach me in all my speaking to truly speak in the name of Jesus. (Colossians 3:17)

Father, I want to mutter and meditate on your Word day and night. (Psalm 1:2)

Father, I pray that the Word of God not depart from my mouth, but that I meditate in it day and night, that I may observe to do according to all that is written in it. For then I will make my way prosperous, and then I shall have good success. (Joshua 1:8)

I thank you Father that the Word is near me, in my mouth and in my heart (that is, the word of faith which we preach). (Romans 10:8)

Help me Lord to make confession of God's Word unto salvation. (Romans 10:10)

Lord, help my heart to receive the Word of God and be filled with it, because out of

the abundance of the heart the mouth speaks. (Matthew 12:34)

PROPHESYING

Lord, cause me to eagerly desire spiritual gifts, but especially that I may prophesy. (1 Corinthians 14:1)

O Lord, pour out your Spirit upon me, and cause me to prophesy and see visions. (Acts 2:17)

Help me Father always to speak to men for edification, exhortation and comfort prophetically. (1 Corinthians 14:3)

Lord, thank you for increased faith with which to prophesy. (Romans 12:6) 2.

PRAYERS TO REFRAIN FROM EVIL SPEAKING

Lord, you said, "What comes out of his mouth, this defiles a man." (Matthew 15:11)

Lord, I pray that I treasure good things, not evil things, in my heart, and that out of the abundance the good things in my heart my mouth speaks. (Matthew 12:35)

I pray that I speak evil of no man. (Titus 3:2) DON'T SLANDER

Lord, you told me not to go up and down as a talebearer, gossip or slanderer among the people. (Leviticus 19:16)

I pray I will never raise a false report. In fact, help me to never pass one on. (Exodus 23:14)

I thank you that you help me, Lord, to put away all evil speaking, that I speak no evil of a brother, and lay aside all evil speaking. (Ephesians 4:31; James 4:11; 1 Peter 2:1)

Help me Lord, where necessary, to debate my cause with my neighbor himself, and never to tell the secret to another first. (Proverbs 25:9)

Lord, you said that he who utters a slander is a fool. I don't want to be a fool in your eyes. (Proverbs 10:18)

I pray Lord that whatsoever things are ... pure ... lovely ... if there be any VIRTUE, I think on these things. (Philippians 4:8)

I pray that I not backbite, nor take up a reproach against my neighbor. (Psalm 15:1,3) MORE I pray that I do everything without complaining or arguing. (Philippians 2:14) I pray that I do not threaten those under my authority. (Ephesians 6:8)

I pray that I do not dig up evil and put it on my lips. (Proverbs 16:27)

I pray that I shun profane and vain babblings: for they increase unto more ungodliness. (2 Timothy 2:16)

Let me not even resemble an idly chattering fool, for such will fall. (Proverbs 10:10)

I pray I do not speak obscenity or foolish talking or coarse jesting, but rather giving of thanks. (Ephesians 5:4)

Lord, the perverse, defiant, contrary, complaining mouth I hate. (Proverbs 8:13) Lord, keep me from feeding on foolishness. (Proverbs 15:14)

Lord, keep me from deceiving others and then saying I was just joking. (Proverbs 26:18,19)

Lord, keep me from lying. (Colossians 3:9) Lord, I put away from me a deceitful mouth, and perverse lips far from me. (Proverbs 4:24)

Lord, I pray that all the words of my mouth be in righteousness; there must be nothing forward or perverse in them. (Proverbs 8:8,9)

Keep me Lord from a flattering mouth, which works ruin. (Proverbs 26:28) I pray Lord that I bless those who curse me. (Luke 6:28)

Father, I pray that I bless those who persecute me; I must bless and not curse. (Romans 12:14)

Father, help me to always speak sound speech, which cannot be condemned. (Titus

2:8) Father, I pray I do not judge others, that I be not judged. (Matthew 7:1)

Father help me never to return evil for evil or reviling for reviling, but on the contrary, let me return blessing. (1 Peter 3:9)

Lord, keep me from quarrelling. Let me be gentle to all, able to teach, patient, in humility correcting those who are in opposition. (2 Timothy. 2:24,25)

Keep me Lord from harsh words, which stir up anger. (Proverbs 15:1) Keep me Lord from dealing falsely, or lying to another.

I pray that I will not be a witness against my neighbor without cause, nor deceive with my lips. (Proverbs 24:28)

Lord, I have purposed that my mouth shall not transgress. (Proverbs 17:3) Lord, keep me from sinning with my tongue. (Psalm 39:1) Lord, If I ever think evil, I must put my hand upon my mouth. (Proverbs 30:32) Help me Father not to curse the king, no, not in my thought. (Ecclesiastes 10:20)

PRAYERS TO SPEAK LESS

I pray I be swift to hear; slow to speak, and slow to wrath. (James 1:19)

Lord, make me the wise one who restrains his lips. (Proverbs 10:19)

Lord, help me to remember that the perverse tongue will be cut out. (Proverbs 10:31)

LORD, MAKE ME OF A FAITHFUL SPIRIT SO AS TO CONCEAL A MATTER NOT NEEDING TO BE SAID. (PROVERBS 11:13)

Lord, keep me from being ensnared by the transgression of my lips. (Proverbs 12:13) Lord, teach me when to cover shame prudently. (Proverbs 12:16)

Lord, teach me when to conceal knowledge. Keep me from proclaiming foolishness. (Proverbs 12:23)

Teach me Lord to guard my mouth and so preserve my life. Keep me from the destruction which comes by opening my lips foolishly. (Proverbs 13:3)

Lord, intensify my hatred for lying. (Proverbs 13:5) Lord, I pray that my lips will preserve me. Keep me from proud words. (Proverbs 14:3)

Father, keep me from idle chatter and poverty. (Proverbs 14:23)

Father, give me the understanding to be slow to wrath, and not impulsive. (Proverbs 14:29)

Father, cause wisdom to rest in my heart. Give me understanding. Let me not reveal to men all that is in my heart. (Proverbs 14:33)

Lord, I pray that I speak soft answers which turn away wrath, and not harsh words which stir up anger. (Proverbs 15:1)

Lord, I pray I that be wise to use knowledge rightly, not to pour forth foolishness. (Proverbs 15:2)

Lord, I pray that I study and ponder how to answer. (Proverbs 15:28)

Lord, give me knowledge and teach me to spare my words. Give me understanding and a calm spirit. (Proverbs 17:25)

I pray Lord that I have the wisdom to hold my peace and shut my lips when it is not wise to speak. (Proverbs 17:23)

SPEAK GRACIOUSLY

Father, I thank you that as I love purity of heart, and You put grace on my lips, the king will be my friend. (Proverbs 22:11)

Pour grace upon my lips, O Father; and bless me forever. (Psalm 45:2) Make me wise and thus my words gracious; let my lips not swallow me up. (Ecclesiastes 10:12)

I pray Lord that men may marvel at the gracious words which come out of my mouth. (Luke 4.22)

I pray Lord that no corrupt communication proceeds out of my mouth, but what is good for necessary edification, that it may impart grace to the hearers. (Ephesians

4:29)

Teach me Lord to give a soft answer that turns away wrath, not harsh words that stirs up anger. (Proverbs 15:1)

Lord, let my words all be words of love, joy, peace, long-suffering, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, self-control. Against such there is no law. (Galatians 5:22-23)

I pray Father that I be swift to hear, slow to speak and slow to wrath; for the wrath of man does not produce the righteousness of God. (James 1:19,20)

I pray that I be slow to anger, and thus better than the mighty, and that I rule my spirit - which is greater than taking a city. (Proverbs 16:32)

PRAYERS TO SPEAK IN FAITH

Lord, remind me that whatever word is not of faith is sin. (Romans 14:23) Lord, I thank you for the faith of God. (Mark 11:22)

Lord, thank you that I can say to the works of the devil "Be Removed!" without doubting in my heart, but believing that what I say will happen, and I shall have what I say. (Mark 11:23)

Lord, help me to mix the Word with faith. (Hebrews 4:2) Lord, thank you for the same spirit of faith, according to what is written, "I believe and

therefore, I speak". So I believe all You are saying and speak it out. (2 Corinthians 4:13)

Lord, help me to preach the Word of faith. (Romans 10:8)

Lord, teach me to imitate God, who gives life to the dead and calls those things which do not exist as though they did. (Ephesians 5:1; Romans 4:17)

POWERFUL BIBLICAL PRAYERS (FAITH-FILLED PRAYER, SPIRIT- FILLED PRAYERS, SPIRIT-LED PRAYERS, BIBLE-BASED PRAYERS)

PRAYER BASED ON PSALM 51

Have mercy upon me, O God, according to Your loving-kindness, according to the multitude of Your tender mercies; blot out my transgressions. Wash me completely from my iniquity, and cleanse me from my sin.

For I know my transgressions; and my sin is ever before me. Against You, I have sinned, and done evil in Your eyes; that You might be justified in Your speaking and be clear when You judge.

Behold, I was brought forth in iniquity, and in sin my mother conceived me. Behold, You desire truth in the inward parts; and in the hidden parts You teach me wisdom. Cleanse me with the precious Blood of Jesus the Lamb of God, my Messiah and Savior, the Redeemer of my soul, for I confess that Jesus is my Lord and I acknowledge his mighty power and submit to his authority; cleanse me and I shall be clean; wash me, and I shall be whiter than snow. Cause me to hear joy and gladness; the bones You have crushed will rejoice. Hide Your face from my sins, and blot out all my iniquities. Forgive me, O God! Forgive me for offending you. Forgive me for sinning against you. Forgive all my faults. Forgive my sins against all men, against all people. Forgive my sins against my father and my mother. Forgive my sins against my brothers and sisters. Forgive my sins against my whole family. Forgive my sins against your church. Forgive my sins against the government. Forgive because I put my faith on Jesus and his sacrificial death at the Cross: "He was wounded for our transgression; he was bruised for our iniquities: the chastisement of our peace was upon him; and with his stripes we are healed." (Isaiah 53:5)

Create in me a clean heart, O God; and renew a steadfast spirit within me. Do not cast me out from Your presence, and do not take Your Holy Spirit from me. Restore to me the joy of Your salvation, and uphold me with a willing spirit. Then I will teach transgressors Your ways; and sinners will turn back to You. Deliver me from

the guilt of my sins, O God, O God of my salvation; my tongue shall sing aloud of Your righteousness.

O Lord, open my lips and my mouth shall declare Your praise. For you do not desire sacrifice, or I would give it; You do not delight in burnt offering. The sacrifices of God are a broken spirit; a broken and a contrite heart, O God, You will not despise.

Do good in Your good pleasure to your repentant creature, to your humble servant that I am, to your born-again child. Heal me, restore me, strengthen me, make me new I pray.

(Psalm 51: 1-18)

PRAYERS TO ABIDE IN CHRIST

Lord Jesus, keep us abiding in You, and You in us. Otherwise we cannot bear fruit. Apart from you we can do nothing. We thank You that you will abide in us, and keep us looking to you. You will

keep us abiding in you all the time. We thank You that through You we will bear much fruit. (John 15:4,5)

Lord, we pray for all those not abiding in You. We pray that they will repent, and not be thrown away as worthless branches. We pray that those in the church will never dry up. We pray they will

never be cast into the fire and burn (John 15:6).

Lord, keep us in You and Your living words remaining in our hearts. We thank you for working this, and we thank you that whatever we desire we will ask, and it shall be done for us (John 15:7).

Lord, keep us in your love, which is as great as the love between You and the Father (John 15:9).

Lord, keep us walking in perfect obedience to your commandments, so that we can abide in your love and be your friends. (John 15:10,14)

Lord, let your joy remain in us, and let our joy be full (John 15:11). Lord, make us to love others with the love of the Father and so abide in you (John 15:12). Lord, live your life in us, so that our way of living is as yours (1 John 2:6).

Lord, love our brothers through us. Make us abide in the light, so that we are never a cause for anyone to stumble (1 John 2:10).

Lord, let the Word of salvation which we heard from the beginning abide in us, so that we will abide in you and in the Father (1 John 2:24).

Lord, may your Truth remain in us and with us forever (2 John 2).

Lord, thank you that your anointing abides in us. Help us to learn and apply all that the anointing teaches us (1 John 2:27)

Thank you Lord that you came to take away sins, and in You there is no sin. Thank you that as we abide in you we sin not (1 John 3:5-6).

Let us always abide in you Lord, so that we will have confidence, and not be ashamed before you

at your coming (1 John 2:28). Confessions of Thanksgiving and Faith

We thank you Lord that we keep Your commandments and so we abide in You, and You in us, because You have given us of Your Spirit. (1 John 4:13)

We thank you that we confess that You are the Son of God, God abides in us, and we in God. (1 John 4:15)

We thank You Jesus that God is love, and since we abide in love, we abide in God, and God in us. (1 John 4:16)

We thank You Father that we are in Him who is true, Jesus Christ. (1 John 5:20) 3. Prayers asking for Grace to be Thankful Dear Holy Spirit, help me:

- in everything to give thanks, for this is the will of God for me in Christ Jesus. I don't want to grieve You through ingratitude. (1 Thessalonians 5:18,19)
- to let the peace of God rule in my heart, to which I was also called in one body; and to be thankful. (Colossians 3:15)

- to offer to God thanksgiving, and pay my vows to the Most High. Teach me to call upon God in the day of trouble; He will deliver me and I will glorify Him. (Psalm 50:14,15)
- to enter into the gates of the Lord with thanksgiving and into His courts with praise. Teach me to be thankful to Him, and bless His name, for the Lord is good. (Psalm 100:4,5)
- to give thanks always for all things to God the Father in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ. (Ephesians 5:20)
- to bless the Lord, who daily loadeth me with His benefits. (Psalm 69:19)
- in whatsoever state I am, therewith to be content. (Philippians 4:11)
- to come before the presence of God with thanksgiving. (Psalm 95:2)
- in whatever I do in word or deed, to give thanks to the Father through Christ. (Colossians 3:17)
- to do all things without complaining or arguing. (Philippians 2:14)

Thanks be to God, who gives us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ. (1 Corinthians 15:57)

Now thanks be to God who always leads me in triumph in Christ, and through me diffuses the fragrance of His knowledge in every place. (2 Corinthians 2:14)

PRAYERS OF THANKFULNESS CONCERNING GOD'S GOODNESS AND GENEROSITY

Thank you Father that you are good, and that your mercy is everlasting. (Psalm 100:5). Thank you Lord that you are very compassionate and merciful. (James 5:11)

Thank you Father that every good and perfect gift is from above, and comes down from You, Father. (James 1:17).

Father, I thank you that your divine power has given me all things that pertain to life and godliness. (2 Peter 1:3).

I thank you God that you are for me, not against me. If you did not spare your own Son, but delivered Him up for me, I realize that you with also freely give me all

things together with Your

Son. (Romans 8:31,32).

I thank you Father that you give good things to those who ask You! I thank you that you give the Holy Spirit to those who ask you! (Matthew 7:11; Luke 11:13).

I thank you Father that I can ask, and I will receive. Thank you Father that you will give me whatever I ask you in Jesus' name! (Matthew 7:7; John 16:23)

POWERFUL BIBLICAL PRAYERS

1. PRAYERS FOR JOY

Lord Jesus, keep me abiding in you so that your joy may be in me and that my joy may be full. (John 15:11)

Lord, turn my sorrow into joy. (John 16:20) Lord, cause my heart to rejoice, and my joy let no one take from me. (John 16:22) Lord, teach me to ask and receive, that my joy may be full. (John 16:24)

LORD, you are my strength and my song; you also have become my salvation. Therefore, with joy let me draw water from the wells of salvation. Your joy is my strength. You are my joy and my strength. Let me know you in this way. (Isaiah 12:2,3; Nehemiah 8:10) God, you are my exceeding joy! (Psalm 43:4) Lord, make me to rejoice in you always! (Philippians 4:4)

Father God, show me the path of life. In your presence is fullness of joy, and at your right hand are pleasures for evermore. Let me experience everything in your presence and what is found at your right hand. (Psalm 16:11)

Father God, give me the oil of joy for mourning, and the garment of praise for the spirit of heaviness! This is your gift and your will! (Isaiah 61:3)

LORD, your Word is to me the joy and the rejoicing of my heart! (Jeremiah. 15:16)

Lord Jesus, you want your joy to be fulfilled in me! Show me how you can make it happen! Lead me into it. (John 17:3)

LORD, I ask you to fill me with all joy and peace in believing, that I may abound in hope by the power of the Holy Spirit. (Romans 15:13)

Holy Spirit, produce your fruit of love and joy in me. (Galatians 5:22) Lord, help me to count it all joy when I fall into various trials. (James 1:2)

Lord, when people revile and persecute me and say all kinds of evil against me falsely for Christ's sake, let me rejoice and be exceedingly glad, for great is my reward in heaven, for so they treated the prophets who were before me. (Matthew 5:12) Lord, give me the joy to hear that my children walk in truth. (3 John 4) Lord, I seek you, so let my heart rejoice! (1 Chronicles. 16:10)

Lord, make me love righteousness and hate wickedness; and anoint me with the oil of gladness more than my companions. (Psalm. 45:7)

2. PRAYERS FOR THE CHURCH

I thank you Father in the name of Jesus Christ for the faith in the church. (Romans 1:8)

I thank you my God always for the grace of God which was given to the church by Christ Jesus. I thank you that they are enriched in everything by You in all utterance and in all knowledge, so that they come short in no gift, eagerly waiting for the revelation of our Lord Jesus Christ. Lord Jesus Christ, you will confirm them to the end, that they may be blameless in the day of Your coming. (1 Cor. 1:4-8)

I thank you Father for the church. I ask you, Father of glory, to give the church the spirit of wisdom and revelation in the knowledge of Jesus Christ. I ask that the eyes of their understanding will be enlightened; that they may know what is the hope of Your calling, what

are the riches of the glory of Your inheritance in the saints, and what is the exceeding greatness of Your power toward us who believe, according to the working of Your mighty power which You worked in Christ when You raised Him from the dead and seated Him at Your right hand in the heavenly places, far above all principality and power and might and dominion, and every name that is named, not only in this age but also in that which is to come. (Ephesians. 1:16-21)

I bow my knees to You, Father, that you would grant the church, according to the riches of Your glory, to be strengthened with might through Your Spirit in the inner man, that Christ may dwell in their hearts through faith; that they, being

rooted and grounded in love, may be able to comprehend with all the saints what is the width and length and depth and height - to know the love of Christ which passes knowledge; that they may be filled with all the fullness of God. Lord,

you are able to do exceedingly abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the power that works in us. (Ephesians . 3:14-20)

I thank you God every time I remember the church, always in every prayer of mine I would like to make request for them with joy. (Philippians. 1:3,4)

I pray, Lord that their love may abound still more and more in knowledge and all discernment, that they may approve the things that are excellent, that they may be sincere and without offense till the day of Christ, being filled with the fruits of righteousness which are by Jesus Christ, to the glory and praise of God. (Philippians. 1:9-11)

THE PASSION OF THE CHURCH IN SEEKING GOD

LORD, I pray that the one desire of all the church members and the thing we will seek will be to dwell in your house all the days of our lives, To behold your beauty, and to inquire in Your temple. Psalm 27.4

THE PROVISION OF GOD FOR THE CHURCH

LORD, let us as a church turn to you and obey Your voice so that YOU will make us abundantly prosperous in all the work of our hands, in EVERYTHING. For you LORD take delight in prospering us. Deuteronomy 30.9

God, I thank you that you shall supply all our needs according to Your riches in glory by Christ Jesus. Philippians 4.19

LORD, you are our Shepherd. We shall not want. Psalm 23.1 We are Your servants - so You take pleasure in our prosperity. Psalm 35.27

I thank you God that you want us to prosper and be in health, even as our souls prosper. Let our souls prosper in every way. 3 John 1.2

LORD God, teach us to profit, and leads us by the way we should go. Isaiah 48.17

God, give us power to get wealth, that You may establish Your covenant. Deut 8.18

I pray that the church will keep the words of Your covenant, and do them, that they may prosper in all that they do. Deuteronomy 29.9

Lord, teach the church to give You their tithes and offerings of every bit of money they've earned to date and put them in Your hands as seeds of their faith.

POWER OF THE SPIRIT IN THE CHURCH

LORD, pour out your Spirit upon us as a church just as on the day of Pentecost. Teach us to wait on you so that we may be clothed with power from on high. Make us witnesses of Christ. Acts 1.8 Luke 24.49

LORD, I pray that our speech and our preaching will not be with the persuasive words of human wisdom, but in demonstration of the Spirit and of power, that our faith should not be in the wisdom of men but in the power of God. 1 Corinthians 2.4 2.5

LORD, I pray that we will do all things in the power of the name of Jesus. Colossians 3.17 Mark 16.17 16.18

LORD, I pray that full of faith and power, we may do great wonders and signs among the people. Acts 6.8

LORD, I thank you that you are able to do exceedingly abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the power that works in us. Ephesians 3.20

LORD, I pray that out of our hearts will flow rivers of living water, as we come to Jesus, drink, and believe Him. John 7.37-7.39

God, give us the Spirit of Wisdom and Revelation in the knowledge of yourself. Ephesians 1.17 1.18

LORD, strengthen us with might through Your Spirit in the inner man, according to the riches of Your glory. Ephesians 3.16

THE NAME OF JESUS

I pray that whatever we do in word or deed, we do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father through Him. Colossians 3.17

I pray Lord that whatever we ask in Jesus' name, that Jesus will do, that the Father may be glorified in the Son. If we ask anything in Jesus' name, he will do it. I ask everything in Jesus' name. John 14.13

14.14 LORD, let us speak to men and teach in the name of Jesus every day. Acts 4.17 4.18

God, grant us boldness to speak Your word by stretching out Your hand to heal, and grant that signs and wonders may be done through the name of Your Holy Servant Jesus. Acts 4.29

I thank you Lord that the demons are subject to us in Christ's name. Luke 10.17

- Introduction
- El Shaddai (Lord God Almighty)
- El Elyon (The Most High God)
- Adonai (Lord, Master)
- Yahweh (Lord, Jehovah)
- Jehovah Nissi (The Lord My Banner)
- Jehovah-Raah (The Lord My Shepherd)
- Jehovah Rapha (The Lord That Heals)
- Jehovah Shammah (The Lord Is There)
- Jehovah Tsidkenu (The Lord Our Righteousness)
- Jehovah Mekoddishkem (The Lord Who Sanctifies You)
- El Olam (The Everlasting God)
- Elohim (God)
- Qanna (Jealous)
- Jehovah Jireh (The Lord Will Provide)
- Jehovah Shalom (The Lord Is Peace)
- · Jehovah Sabaoth (The Lord of Hosts)

FIGURE 1 - NAMES OF GOD

ENDURANCE OF THE CHURCH

Lord, strengthen the church with all might, according to Your glorious power, for all patient endurance and longsuffering with joy! Colossians 1.11

Lord, make us strong in You and in the power of Your might. Ephesians 6.10

Lord, let us always carry about in our bodies the dying of the Lord Jesus, so that the life of Jesus may be

manifested in our mortal bodies. 2 Corinthians 4.10 4.11

As a servants of God, let us commend ourselves in every way - through great endurance. 2 Corinthians 6.4

LOVING GOD'S WORD

Lord, I pray that the church and the new Christians will delight themselves in Your statutes; that they will not forget Your Word. Psalm 119.16

I pray that all in the church may receive with meekness the implanted Word, which is able to save their souls. James 1.21

Lord, teach us to become doers of the Word, and not hearers only, deceiving ourselves. James 1.22

I pray Lord that Your Words abide in us. John 15.7 Let the word of Christ dwell in us richly. Colossians 3.16

Teach us, Lord, to listen to Your words; and bow our ears to what God says. Let us not let Your words depart from our eyes; let us keep them in the midst of our hearts. They are life to us and health to all our

flesh. Proverbs 4.20-4.22

Let us rejoice in the way of God's testimonies as much as in all riches. Psalm 119.14

God make us walk in the path of Your commandments, for we delight in it. Psalm 119.35

The law of God's mouth is better to us than thousands of coins of gold and silver.

Psalm 119.72

Give us greater love for Your Word, O God. Make it our meditation all the day. Psalm 119.97

LOVE FOR GOD AND FOR OTHERS

Lord, make me an example to the believers in love. 1Timothy 4.14

Lord, I pray that in our church we love one another fervently from a pure heart. 1 Peter 1.22

I pray that we as a church really pursue love. 1 Corinthians 14.1

Lord, I pray that if any in the church have a complaint against another, they will forgive them just as Christ forgave us. Colossians 3.13

Lord, teach us to walk in love. Ephesians 5.2 Lord, let us be longsuffering, patient and kind. Lord, let no envy be in our hearts. Lord, let us not be proud, boastful or puffed up. Lord, let us not behave rudely.

Lord, let us not be selfish. Let us seek what is good for others. Lord, let us not be easily hurt or offended or irritated.

Lord, let us think good of others and reject evil suspicions. Let there be no record of wrongs in the church.

Lord, teach us to rejoice in the truth! Lord, let us bear all things well. Lord, let us be full of trust in You, and trust one another according to Your will.

Lord, enable us to endure all things.

Lord, let our love never fail. 1 Corinthians 13.4-13.8

Let us love in deed, not just in word. 1 John

Lord, let us love our wives as Christ loved the church, and gave himself for her. Ephesians 5.25

Lord, may we love the Lord our God with all our hearts, with all our souls, with all our minds, and with all our strength, and our neighbor as ourselves. Luke 10.27

3. PRAYERS ABOUT SPEECH

Father, I pray that I let no corrupt word proceed out of my mouth, but only such a word as is good for necessary edification, that it may impart grace to the hearers. (Ephesians. 4:29)

Father, I pray that I speak evil of no man. (Titus 3:2) Father, I pray that I restrain my lips. Proverbs 10.19

I pray Lord that I be continually filled with the Spirit, speaking to one another in psalms and hymns and spiritual songs, singing and making melody in my heart to you Lord, giving thanks always for all things to

God the Father in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ. (Ephesians. 5:18-20)

Lord, I pray that not only will I speak with new tongues, but also that I will truly interpret these tongues. (Mark 16:17; 1 Corinthians 14:13)

Lord, create words of faith on my lips always, since whatever I speak that is not of faith is sin. (Isaiah57:19; Romans 10:8; 14:23)

Father, I pray that all I speak be spoken in love. (1 Corinthians 16:14)

Jesus, I must speak words of life. Create words of life on my lips. (Proverbs. 18:21; Acts 5:20; Isaiah57:19)

I pray that truly I will speak the very words of God. (1 Peter 4:11)

Almighty God, I pray that my speech be always in demonstration of the Spirit and of power. (1 Corinthians 2:4)

4. POWERFUL PRAYERS

Heavenly Father, according to your promises I pray these prayers in the Name and the authority of the Lord Jesus Christ:

Dear Holy Spirit, keep me abiding in Jesus. Also, make God's Word to live and abide in Me. Then you promise that I shall ask what I desire, and it shall be done for me. I want all my prayers to be answered.

(John 15.7)

"Oh, that you would bless me indeed, and enlarge my territory, that your hand would be with me, and that you would keep me from evil, that I may be free from pain." So God granted him what he requested.

1Chronicles 4:10

Lord, fill me now and always with the Holy Spirit. I open my heart to yield to the Holy Spirit. Ephesians 5.18

Lord, make me consider myself really dead to sin. Romans 6.11

Father, form Christ in me. I want Christ to dwell in my heart through faith, and live in me always. Gal. 2.20; Gal. 4:19; Ephesians 3:17

Thank You Father that through faith I am the righteousness of God in Christ. 2 Corinthians 5.21

Thank You Father that my body is the temple of the Holy Spirit, who is in me, whom I have from God. Make me always conscious of this fact. 1 Corinthians 6.19

Thank You Father that I am an ambassador for Christ. Make me a good ambassador for Your Kingdom. 2 Corinthians 5.20

Dear Holy Spirit, show me how to overcome the devil by the blood of the Lamb, and by the Word of my testimony, and to not love my life to the death. Revelation 12.11

Father, through Jesus cause me to continually offer to You the sacrifice of praise. Hebrews 13.15

Dear Holy Spirit, cause me to bless the Lord at all times. I want His praise to be continually in my mouth. Psalm 34.1

Dear Holy Spirit, teach me to speak gracious words like a wise man. Ecclesiastes

10.12 Dear Father, make me to be swift to hear; slow to speak, and slow to wrath. James 1.19

Dear Lord, help me to let no corrupt word proceed out of my mouth. I want to speak only words that build up according to the need of the moment. I pray that these words will impart grace to those who hear.

Ephesians 4.29

Lord, make it so that the Word of God doesn't depart from my mouth. Get me to the place where I

meditate in the Word day and night, so that I may observe to do according to all that is written in it. Make me prosperous according to Your Word and give me good success. Jos 1.8

Lord, as you taught us: he who speaks from himself seeks his own glory. I pray that I will not speak from myself. I pray that I will seek Your glory and that there be no unrighteousness in me. John 7.18

Lord, give me grace to say to the works of the devil "Be Removed!" without doubting in my heart. When I say things let me believe that what I say will happen. I will have what I say. Mark 11.23

Lord, cause me to put away all evil speaking. Ephesians 4.31

Thank You Jesus that You bore my sicknesses and carried my pains, and with Your stripes I am healed. Isaiah 53.4 53.5

Lord I pray that whether I eat or drink, or whatever I do, I do all to the glory of God. 1 Corinthians 10.31

Dear Holy Spirit, help me to offer to God thanksgiving, and pay my vows to the Most High. Help me to call upon God in the day of trouble; He will deliver me and I will glorify Him. Psalm 50.14 50.15

It is You God who arm me with strength, and make my way perfect. Psalm 18.32

Dear Lord, help me to arm myself with the mind of Christ to suffer in the flesh for

others. 1 Peter 4.1

Lord, anoint me to heal the broken hearted, and to set the captives free.

I thank You Lord Jesus, that you have given me authority to trample on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy, and nothing shall by any means hurt me. Luke 10.19

Lord, help me to discipline my body and bring it into subjection. I don't want to be disqualified for anything in Your plan for me. 1 Corinthians 9.27

Lord I pray that I go into all the world and preach the gospel to all creation. Mark 16.15

I pray Lord that I be able to do all things through Christ who strengthens me. Philippians 4.13

5. PRAYERS TO ABIDE IN CHRIST

Lord Jesus, keep us abiding in You, and You in us. Otherwise we cannot bear fruit. Apart from you we can do nothing. We thank You that you will abide in us, and keep us looking to you. You will keep us

abiding in you all the time. We thank You that through You we will bear much fruit. (John 15:4,5)

Lord, we pray for all those not abiding in You. We pray that they will repent, and not be thrown away as worthless branches. We pray that those in the church will never dry up. We pray they will never be cast

into the fire and burned (John 15:6).

Lord, keep us in You and Your living words remaining in our hearts. We thank you for working this, and we thank you that whatever we desire we will ask, and it shall be done for us (John 15:7).

Lord, keep us in your love, which is as great as the love between You and the Father (John 15:9).

Lord, keep us walking in perfect obedience to your commandments, so that we can abide in your love and be your friends. (John 15:10,14)

Lord, let your joy remain in us, and let our joy be full (John 15:11).

Lord, make us to love others with the love of the Father and so abide in you (John 15:12). Lord, live your life in us, so that our way of living is as yours (1 John 2:6).

Lord, love our brothers through us. Make us abide in the light, so that we are never a cause for anyone to stumble (1 John 2:10).

Lord, let the Word of salvation which we heard from the beginning abide in us, so that we will abide in you and in the Father (1 John 2:24).

Lord, may your Truth remain in us and with us forever (2 John 2).

Lord, thank you that your anointing abides in us. Help us to learn and apply all that the anointing teaches us (1 John 2:27)

Thank you Lord that you came to take away sins, and in You there is no sin. Thank you that as we abide in you we sin not (1 John 3:5-6).

Let us always abide in you Lord, so that we will have confidence, and not be ashamed before you at your coming (1 John 2:28).

6. PRAYERS TO KEEP ON TRACK

Uphold my steps in your paths, that my footsteps may not slip. (Psalm. 17:5) Make me to go in the path of your commandments; for in that do I delight. Psalm 119:35

Cause me to hear your loving kindness in the morning; for in you do I trust: cause me to know the way in which I should walk; for I lift up my soul to you. Psalm 143:8

Make me to hear joy and gladness; that the bones which you have broken may rejoice. (Psalm. 51:8)

Behold, you desire truth in the inward parts: and in the hidden part you shall make me to know wisdom. Psalm 51:6

Make me to know your ways, O LORD; teach me your paths. Psalm 25:4

Make me to understand the way of your precepts: so shall I talk of your wondrous works. Psalm 119:27

You have made known to me the ways of life; you shall make me full of joy with your countenance. Acts 2:28

7. PRAYERS FOR SPIRITUAL FULLNESS

Lord, fill us with your Spirit just like you want us to be! (Ephesians. 5:18) Lord, bless us with hunger and thirst for righteousness, and fill us (Matthew 5:6)

Grant us, O God, according to the riches of Your glory, to be strengthened with might through Your Spirit in the inner man, that Christ may dwell in our hearts through faith. (Ephesians. 3:16-17)

I pray that being rooted and grounded in love we may know the love of Christ which passes knowledge, that we may be filled up to all the fullness of God. (Ephesians 3.18)

I pray that whenever we thirst we will come to Jesus and drink. Let rivers of living water flow out of our bellies as we believe in You. (John 7:37-39)

I pray that we be filled with the Holy Spirit and speak in tongues. (Acts 2:4)

I pray that we be filled with the Holy Spirit and speak the Word of God with boldness. (Acts 4:31)

I pray that we be filled with the Holy Spirit and prophesy. (Luke 1:67; 1 Corinthians 14:1)

Fill us, O God of hope with all joy and peace in believing, that we may abound in hope by the power of the Holy Spirit. (Romans 15:13)

I pray that we be full of goodness, filled with all knowledge, able to admonish one another. (Romans 15:14)

I pray that we see and become radiant, and our hearts swell with joy, because the abundance of the sea shall be turned to us, the wealth of the Gentiles shall come to us. (Isaiah 60:5)

O God, make all grace abound towards us, that we, always having all sufficiency in all things may have an abundance for every good work. (2Cor 9:8)

BIBLICAL CONFESSIONS OF THE WORD OF GOD - CONFESSIONS OF FAITH - POWERFUL CONFESSIONS - CONFESSIONS FOR VICTORIOUS LIVING

Believing what God said and putting His Word in our own mouth and speaking it forth is powerful and life changing. There is power in the Word of Christ. There is life in the

Word. The Word changes things. Proclaiming what we strongly believe in our hearts is pleasing to God. It honors God. It strengthens our own spirit and soul. The confessions of

faith will put God Word and His Holy Spirit in action in our lives. We will be changed and transformed in the process. The image of Christ will be formed in us. The Spirit of Christ will accompany the word of our Biblical Confessions AND FULFILL HIS WORD IN OUR MOUTHS. Healings shall come. Faith shall be increased. The promises of God shall be fulfilled as we believe and obey the Spirit and walk in love. The devil will flee from us and fear us. God's holy angels will come into action in our behalf and perform according to God's Word spoken in faith. So speak God's Word, speak it in faith, speaking it boldly, confess it, proclaim and see yourself be blessed beyond measure.

1. My DNA is all God!

- I am born again of the incorruptible seed of the Word of God! (1 Peter 1:23)
- I am light so I choose to stay in the Light (Ephesians 5:8; 1 Thessalonians 5:5)
- **I am** clothed in the armor of light, just like You are clothed, God my Lord and Father, in the garment of light. (Romans 13:12; Psalm 104:2)
- **I am** cleansed from all unrighteousness. I cast every sin out of my life and receive my forgiveness. (1 John 1:9)
- I am love because You are Love, Father God, and by faith I release Love to my neighbor.
- (Romans 13:9; 1 John 2:9-11, 3:14)
- I am a new creature in every way. The old things are no more. Everything

- about me has changed! (2 Corinthians 5:17)
- I am filled through and through -- spirit, soul and body -- with THE GLORY THE FULNESS THE LOVE THE LIGHT THE LOVE!
- **I am** expecting the Glory to be manifest in me. It is my spirit DNA! (John 17:10)

2. JESUS IS THE LIGHT OF MY LIFE!

I walk in the Light of Jesus... Darkness has no place in me because, according to the Word of God, I am born of the Light.

Jesus is faithful and righteous... He forgives me and His Blood keeps me clean!

I live in fellowship with the Light... because I keep THE commandment, loving the Lord and loving my neighbor.

3. NAMES AND ATTRIBUTES OF GOD

- You are Good (1 Chronicles 16:34)
- He is Powerful (1 Corinthians 1:24)
- He is Great (Psalm 86:10)
- You are Excellent (Psalm 8:1)
- You are Love (1 John 4:16)
- You are Wisdom (1 Corinthians 1:24)
- He is Holy (Psalm 22:3-4)
- You are Patient (Romans 15:5)
- You are Changeless (Malachi 3:6)
- You are Merciful (Psalm 116:5)
- You are Almighty (2 Corinthians 6:18)
- You are Glorious (Exodus 15:11)
- You are Righteous (Deuteronomy 32:4)
- You are Just (Isaiah 45:21)
- You are Grace (John 1:14)
- You are Majestic (Isaiah 33:21)

- You are All-Knowing (John 16:30)
- You are All-Wise (Proverbs 3:19-20)
- You are True (Jeremiah 10:10)
- You are Pure (1 John 3:3)
- You are Sinless (1 Peter 2:21-22)
- You are Radiant (Hebrews 1:3)
- You are Faithful (Deuteronomy 7:9)
- You are Magnificent (Isaiah 28:29)
- You are Worthy (Psalm 18:3)
- You are my Creator (Psalm 139:13)
- You are my Redeemer (Isaiah 59:20)
- You are my Strength (Isaiah 12:2)
- You are my Truth (John 14:6)
- You are the Lifter of my Head (Psalm 3:3)
- You are All-Sufficient One (2 Corinthians 12:9)
- You are my Savior (Luke 1:47)
- You are my Hope (Psalm 71:5)
- Jesus is the Son of God (Luke 1:35)
- Jesus is my Resurrection (John 11:25)
- Jesus is the Holy Spirit (Genesis 1:1-3)
- Jesus is the Light of the World (John 8:12)
- Jesus is the Lord of lords (Deuteronomy 10:17)
- You are the King of kings (Revelation 17:14)
- You are my Authority (Matthew 28:18)
- You are my Consuming Fire (Deuteronomy 4:24)
- God is my Restorer (Psalm 23:3)
- Father God is Comforter (John 14:15)
- Father God is my Stronghold in the Day of Trouble (Nahum 1:7)
- Father God is my Resting Place (Jeremiah 50:6)
- Father God is my Refiner (Malachi 3:2-3)
- Father God is Deliverer (Psalm 70:5)
- God is my Refuge from the Storm (2 Samuel 22:3)
- God is my Overcomer (John 16:33)

- Jesus is my Peace (Ephesians 2:14)
- Jesus is the Bread of Life (John 6:35)
- Jesus my Fortress (Psalm 18:2)
- Jesus is my Everlasting Father (Isaiah 9:6)
- God is my Shade from the Heat (Isaiah 25:4)
- God is my Healer (Malachi 4:2)
- God the Holy Spirit is my Counselor (Psalm 16:7)
- God the Holy Spirit is the Author of my Faith
- God the Holy Spirit is my Rewarder (Hebrews 11:6)
- God the Holy Spirit is my Hiding Place (Psalm 32:7)
- The Holy Spirit is my Shield (Psalm 33:20)
- The Holy Spirit is my Purifier (Malachi 3:3)
- The Holy Spirit is my Sustainer (Psalm 55:22)
- Jesus is the Sovereign Lord (2 Samuel 7:28)

3. PROVERBS 12 CONFESSIONS

I love discipline and instruction, and I love knowledge. I do not hate correction - I appreciate it. If I hated correction I would be like a brute animal. Proverbs 12.1

I choose to be good - and receive grace from God. I reject wicked devices. These bring the condemnation of the Lord. Proverbs 12.2

I put down roots in the Lord that cannot be moved. I reject wicked ways, by which I may never be established in righteousness or truth or anything worthwhile. Proverbs 12.3

My wife will not cause me shame and be as rottenness in my bones. She is a virtuous woman. Proverbs 12.4

The thoughts of the righteous are right. God has made me righteous in Christ and is making all my thoughts right. I don't accept the counsels of wicked people or wicked spirits - they are deceit.

Proverbs 12.5

4. PROVERBS 10 CONFESSIONS

I do not value ill-gotten treasures. Proverbs 10.2

I will not be lazy and become poor. My diligent hands will bring wealth. Proverbs 10.4

I work when it is time to work. I don't sleep at those times. Proverbs 10.5

I quietly accept commands from those in authority rather than chattering like a fool. Proverbs 10.8

I walk with integrity - this makes me secure. I reject crooked paths. I know that those who take them will be exposed. Proverbs 10.9

I will remember that a chattering fool comes to ruin. Proverbs 10.10 I choose to love and forgive rather than to hate and quarrel. Proverbs 10.12

I am discerning about what I talk about, what I think about and the things I get involved in. Proverbs 10.13

I collect knowledge. I store it up. I avoid talking about things I don't know or understand. Proverbs 10.14

I choose riches rather than poverty. Proverbs 10.15

I thank God for my wages - which lead to life. I know that the income of the wicked brings them punishment. Proverbs 10.16

I heed discipline. In this way I show the way to life. I don't ignore correction. By doing this I

would lead others astray. Proverbs 10.17

I will not hate my enemies. I will not lie about anyone. I know that he who spreads slander is a fool. Proverbs 10.18

I don't talk a lot - its impossible to talk a lot without sinning. Instead, I hold my tongue even when I'd like to talk from myself. Proverbs 10.19

I value righteous speech, not foolish words from foolish hearts. Proverbs 10.20 I

will judge things. Proverbs 10.21

I receive the blessing of the Lord which brings wealth, and he adds no trouble to it. Proverbs 10.22

I don't find pleasure in evil conduct. I delight in wisdom. Proverbs 10.23

I renounce wickedness which leads to a fear of disaster that overtakes the wicked. Instead, I intensely desire good things, knowing that these desires will be granted. Proverbs 10.24

I know that I will stand firm, because I am righteous and in Christ. Proverbs 10.25 I don't send lazy people to do anything. Proverbs 10.26

I fear the Lord. I have a filial fear of offending Him. I hate evil and depart from iniquity. I know the terror of the Lord, and his judgments against sin. Proverbs 10.27

Something good is going to happen to me. I just know it and I feel good about it. I'm rejoicing! The wicked though, aren't going to live as long as they think. Proverbs 10.28

I am safe when I walk in the ways of the Lord. Proverbs 10.29

I will never be uprooted, but the wicked will not remain in the land. Proverbs 10.30

I am to bring forth wisdom from my mouth. I am not to speak perversely, for example, complaining or making stupid jokes or gossiping. Proverbs 10.31

5. CONFESSIONS OF PSALM 119

God does not let me wander from his commandments. Psalm 119.10 God teaches me His statutes. Psalm 119.12 God deals bountifully with me that I may live and keep His word. Psalm 119.17 God opens my eyes, that I may see wonderful things from His law. Psalm 119.18 God does not hide His commandments from me. Psalm 119.19 God removes from me reproach and contempt as I keep His testimonies. Psalm 119.22 God revives me according to His word. Psalm 119.25 God makes me understand the way of His precepts. Psalm 119.27 God

strengthens me according to His word. Psalm 119.28 God removes from me the way of lying, and grants me His law graciously. Psalm 119.29 The LORD does not put me to shame. Psalm 119.31 God shall enlarge my heart. Psalm 119.32 The LORD teaches me the way of His statutes, and I shall keep it to the end. Psalm 119.33 God gives me understanding, and I shall keep his law. Indeed, I shall observe it with my

whole heart. Psalm 119.34

God makes me walk in the path of His commandments, for I delight in it. Psalm 119.35 God inclines my heart to His testimonies, and not to covetousness. Psalm 119.36

God turns away my eyes from looking at worthless things, and revives me in His way. Psalm 119.37

God establishes His word to me, for I am devoted to fearing Him. Psalm 119.38 God turns away my reproach, for His judgments are good. Psalm 119.39 God revives me in His righteousness. Psalm 119.40 God lets His mercies come also to me - His salvation according to His Word. Psalm 119.41

God does not take the word of truth utterly out of my mouth, for I have hoped in His ordinances. Psalm 119.43

God remembers His word to me, upon which He has caused me to hope. Psalm 119.49 God's word has given me life. Psalm 119.50 God is merciful to me according to His word. Psalm 119.58 God has dealt well with me according to His word. Psalm 119.65

God teaches me good judgment and knowledge, for I believe His commandments. Psalm 119.66

God is good and does good, and teaches me His statutes. Psalm 119.68

God's hands have made me and fashioned me; he gives me understanding, that I may learn his commandments. Psalm 119.73

God's merciful kindness is for my comfort, according to His word to me. Psalm

119.76

God's tender mercies come to me, that I may live, for God's law is my delight. Psalm 119.77

God lets the proud be ashamed, for they treated me wrongfully with falsehood. Psalm 119.78

God helps me in persecutions. Psalm 119.86

God revives me according to his lovingkindness, so that I may keep the testimony of his mouth. Psalm 119.88

I am God's and He saves me. Psalm 119.94

God, through His commandments, makes me wiser than my enemies; for they are ever with me. Psalm 119.98

God accepts the free-will offerings of my mouth, and teaches me His judgments. Psalm 119.108

God upholds me according to his word, that I may live. And God does not let me be ashamed of my hope. Psalm 119.116

God holds me up, and I shall be safe, and I shall observe his statutes continually. Psalm 119.117

God does not leave me to my oppressors as I have done justice and righteousness. Psalm 119.121

God is surety for me for good and does not let the proud oppress me. Psalm 119.122 God deals with me according to His mercy, and teaches me His statutes. Psalm 119.124

God gives me understanding, that I may know His testimonies. Psalm 119.125

God looks upon me and is merciful to me. This is God's custom towards those who love His name. Psalm 119.132

God directs my steps by His word, and lets no iniquity have dominion over me.

Psalm 119.133

God redeems me from the oppression of man, that I may keep His precepts. Psalm 119.134

God makes His face shine upon me and teaches me His statutes. Psalm 119.135 God gives me understanding, and I shall live. Psalm 119.144 God hears me when I cry out with my whole heart. Psalm 119.145 God saves me, and I will keep His testimonies. Psalm 119.146

God hears my voice according to His loving-kindness and revives me according to His justice. Psalm 119.149

God considers my affliction and delivers me, for I do not forget his law. Psalm 119.153

God pleads my cause and redeems me; and revives me according to His Word. Psalm 119.143

The LORD revives me according to His judgments. Psalm 119.156

The LORD considers how I love His precepts and revives me according to His loving- kindness. Psalm 119.159

My cry comes before the LORD and He gives me understanding according to His Word. Psalm 119.169

God lets my supplications come before Him. He delivers me according to His Word. Psalm 119.170

God's hand becomes my help, for I have chosen his precepts. Psalm 119.173

God lets my soul live and it shall praise Him, and God lets His judgments help me. Psalm 119.175

God seeks me, for I do not forget His commandments. Psalm 119.176

6.WHO GOD IS TO ME

WHO IS GOD TO ME AND IN ME The LORD is my STRENGTH. Isaiah. 12:2 The LORD is the strength of my life. Of whom shall I be afraid? Psalm. 27:1 The LORD is my SONG. Isaiah. 12:2 The LORD is my SALVATION. Isaiah. 12:2 Christ Himself is our PEACE. Ephesians 2:14 God is my EXCEEDING JOY! Psalm. 43:4 God is the LORD who heals me. Exodus 15:26 The LORD is my ROCK. Psalm. 18:2 The LORD is my LIGHT. Psalm. 27:1 GREATER is He that is in me than he that is in the world. 1 John 4:4

Jesus Christ is my SAVIOUR! Titus 2:13 The LORD is our RIGHTEOUSNESS. Jeremiah. 23:6 The LORD is my provider! Genesis 22:14 The LORD is my FORTRESS and my stronghold. Psalm 18:2 The LORD is MY DELIVERER! Psalm. 18:2 The LORD is my SHIELD. Psalm. 18:2 The LORD is my helper. Heb. 13:6 The LORD will never leave me nor forsake me. Hebrews 13:5 The LORD is my banner of victory! Exodus 17:15

7. CONFESSIONS OF THANKSGIVING AND FAITH

We thank you Lord that we keep Your commandments and so we abide in You, and You in us, because You have given us of Your Spirit. (1 John 4:13)

We thank you that we confess that You are the Son of God, God abides in us, and we in God. (1 John 4:15)

We thank You Jesus that God is love, and since we abide in love, we abide in God, and God in us. (1 John 4:16)

We thank You Father that we are in Him who is true, Jesus Christ. (1 John 5:20)

8. PROMISES OF GOD ABOUT PRAYER

This is what my Faithful Lord who cannot lie has declared to me!

If you abide in Me, and my Words abide in you, you will ask what you desire, and it shall be done for you. (John 15:7)

Therefore, I say to you, whatever things you ask when you pray, believe that you

receive them, and you will have them. (Mark 11:24)

And whatever things you ask in prayer, believing, you will receive. (Matthew 21:22)

And whatever you ask in My name, that I will do, that the Father may be glorified in the Son. If you ask anything in My name, I will do it. (John 14:13,14)

Again I say to you that if two of you agree concerning anything that they ask, it will be done for them by My Father in heaven. (Matthew 18:19)

Ask, and it will be given unto you; seek, and you will find; knock and it will be opened unto you. For everyone who asks receives, and he who seeks finds, and to him who knocks it will be opened.

(Matthew 7:7,8)

And shall God not avenge His own elect who cry out day and night to Him, though He bears long with them. I tell you that He will avenge them speedily. (Luke 18:7,8)

The effective, fervent prayer of a righteous man avails much. (James 5:16)

Now this is the confidence that we have in Him, that if we ask anything according to His will, He hears

us. And if we know that He hears us, whatever we ask, we know that we have the petitions that we have asked of Him. (1 John 5:14,15)

9. COMMITMENT TO WORSHIP

I shall worship the Lord my God, and Him only shall I serve. (Matthew 4:10)

I am a true worshipper, and worship the Father in spirit and in truth for the Father is seeking such to worship Him. (John 4:23)

I shall love the Lord my God with all my heart, with all my soul, with all my strength, and with all my mind, and my neighbor as myself. (Luke 10:27)

Whether I eat or drink, or whatever I do, I do all to the glory of God. (1 Corinthians 10:31)

I am of the circumcision, who worship God in the Spirit, rejoice in Christ Jesus, and have no confidence in the flesh. (Philippians 3:3)

But indeed I count all things loss for the excellence of the knowledge of Christ Jesus my Lord, for whom I have suffered the loss of all things, and count them as rubbish, that I may gain Christ ... that I may know

Him and the power of His resurrection and the fellowship of His sufferings, being conformed to His death. (Philippians 3:8, 10)

I present my body to God a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable to God, which is my reasonable service

and worship. (Romans 12:1)

I exalt the Lord my God, and worship at His footstool, for He is holy. (Psalm 99:9)

I serve the Lord with gladness, and come before His presence with singing. (Psalm 100:2)

10. CONFESSIONS ABOUT FOCUS OF MIND

'And you shall love the Lord your God with all your heart, with all your soul, with all your mind, and with all your strength.' This is the first commandment. (Mark 12:30)

Do not love the world or the things in the world. If anyone loves the world, the love of the Father is not in him.

(1 John 2:15) Love does not seek its own. (1 Corinthians 13:5)

Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly in all wisdom, teaching and admonishing one another in psalms and hymns and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your hearts to the Lord. (Colossians 3:16)

And do not be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewing of

your mind, that you may prove what is that good and acceptable and perfect will of God. (Romans 12:2)

Do not neglect the gift that is in you, which was given to you by prophecy with the laying

on of hands of the presbytery. Meditate on these things; give yourself entirely to them, that your progress may be evident to all. (1 Timothy 4:14,15)

11. CONFESSIONS ABOUT THOUGHT LIFE

I must be slow to anger. I must also be quick to listen and slow to speak. I will be slow to anger. I will be quick to listen. I will be slow to speak. (James 1:19) I will not be so foolish as to get annoyed. (Proverbs 12:16)

It takes great understanding to be slow to anger. I lift up my voice for this understanding. I will not have a hasty temper, so as to exalt folly. (Proverbs 14:29; 2:1-4)

Anger is a work of the flesh. But I belong to Jesus and have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires. (Galatians 5:20,24)

I must answer softly and not speak harshly. (Proverbs 15:1) I must be slow to anger and quiet contention. (Proverbs 15:18) I must be slow to anger and rule my spirit. (Proverbs 16:32) Good sense makes me slow to anger, and it is to my glory to overlook an offense. (Proverbs 19:11)

I must not provoke God to anger. (Proverbs 20:2)

I can give gifts in secret to avert anger. (Proverbs 21:14)

I make no friendship with a man given to anger, nor do I go with a wrathful man. (Provers 22:24)

A fool gives full vent to his anger but I choose by God's grace to quietly hold it back. (Proverbs 29:11)

I mustn't hold on to wrath and anger because it stirs up strife, and causes much transgression. (Proverbs 29:22)

In my anger I am careful not to sin; I do not let the sun go down on my anger. (Ephesians 4:26)

I put away all bitterness and wrath and anger and clamor and slander, with all malice. (Ephesians 4:31)

I do not provoke my spiritual children to anger, but bring them up in the discipline and instruction of the Lord. (Ephesians 6:4)

I put away anger, wrath, malice, slander and foul talk from my mouth. (Colossians 3:8) I desire that I should pray, lifting holy hands without anger or quarreling. (1 Timothy 2:8) I am not afraid of the anger of the unrighteous. (Hebrews 11:27)

12. CONFESSIONS ABOUT ANGER

I must be slow to anger.

I must also be quick to listen and slow to speak. I will be slow to anger. I will be quick to listen. I will be slow to speak. (James 1:19)

I will not be so foolish as to get annoyed. (Proverbs 12:16)

It takes great understanding to be slow to anger. I lift up my voice for this understanding. I will not have a hasty temper, so as to exalt folly. (Proverbs 14:29; 2:1-4)

Anger is a work of the flesh. But I belong to Jesus and have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires. (Galatians 5:20,24)

I must answer softly and not speak harshly. (Proverbs 15:1)

I must be slow to anger and quiet contention. (Proverbs 15:18)

I must be slow to anger and rule my spirit. (Proverbs 16:32)

Good sense makes me slow to anger, and it is to my glory to overlook an offense. (Proverbs 19:11)

I must not provoke God to anger. (Proverbs 20:2) I can give gifts in secret to avert anger. (Proverbs 21:14)

I make no friendship with a man given to anger, nor do I go with a wrathful man. (Provers 22:24)

A fool gives full vent to his anger but I choose by God's grace to quietly hold it back. (Proverbs 29:11)

I mustn't hold on to wrath and anger because it stirs up strife, and causes much transgression. (Proverbs 29:22)

In my anger I am careful not to sin; I do not let the sun go down on my anger. (Ephesians 4:26)

I put away all bitterness and wrath and anger and clamor and slander, with all malice. (Ephesians 4:31)

I do not provoke my spiritual children to anger, but bring them up in the discipline and instruction of the Lord. (Ephesians 6:4)

I put away anger, wrath, malice, slander and foul talk from my mouth. (Colossians 3:8) I desire that I should pray, lifting holy hands without anger or quarreling. (1 Timothy 2:8) I am not afraid of the anger of the unrighteous. (Hebrews 11:27)

13. CONFESSIONS ON FORGIVING OTHERS

Father, forgive me my debts, as I forgive my debtors. Matthew 6.12

For if I forgive men their trespasses, my Heavenly Father will also forgive me. But if I do not forgive men their trespasses, neither will my Father forgive my trespasses. Matthew 6.14 6.15

If my brother sins against me I shall forgive him up to seventy times seven times. Matthew 18.21 18.22

My Heavenly Father will deliver me to the torturers until I pay all I owe God, if I from my heart do not forgive my brother his trespasses. Matthew 18.34 18.35

The blood of the New Covenant was shed for the remission of sins. Matthew 26.28

When I stand praying, if I have anything against anyone, I forgive him, that my Father in heaven may also forgive me my trespasses. Mark 11.25

If I do not forgive, neither will my Father in heaven forgive my trespasses. Mark 11.26

I judge not, and I shall not be judged. I condemn not, and I shall not be condemned. I forgive, and I will be forgiven. Luke 6.37

Father forgive our sins, for we also forgive everyone who is indebted to us. Luke 11.4

I take heed to myself. If my brother sins against me, I rebuke him; and if he repents, I forgive him. Luke 17.3

And if he sins against me seven times in a day, and seven times in a day returns to me, saying, "I repent", I shall forgive him. Luke 17.4

Jesus, you prayed on the cross, "Father, forgive them. For they know not what they do." Luke 23.34

If I forgive the sins of any, they are forgiven. John 20.23

Now whom you forgive anything, I also forgive. For indeed if I have forgiven anything, I have forgiven that one for the sake of the church in the presence of Christ, lest Satan should take advantage of us; for we are not ignorant of his devices. 2 Corinthians 2.10 2.11

I am to be kind to one another, tenderhearted, forgiving one another, just as God in Christ also forgave me. Ephesians 4.32

I bear with one another, and forgive one another, if I have a complaint against another, even as Christ forgave me, so I must forgive. Colossians 3.13

14. RESISTING WORRY, ANXIETY, FRUSTRATION

I cast all my anxieties (worries) upon the Lord, because He cares for me. 1 Peter 5. I have no anxiety about anything, but in everything by prayer and supplication with thanksgiving I let my requests be made known to God. Philippians 4.6

I do not fret or worry or get anxious because of wicked people. I am not envious of wrongdoers. Psalm 37.1

I am still before the LORD, and wait patiently for him. I do not get uptight or worry over the one who prospers through dirty tricks and dishonest methods. Psalm 37.7

I will hold myself from getting angry about this stuff. I will stop getting really angry with people. I'm not going to worry about it - because this kind of worrying just leads to worse evil. Psalm 37.8

It is vain to rise early and go to bed late and work anxiously. God gives me sleep because He loves me. Psalm 127.2

Anxiety in my heart would weigh me down. Instead I will receive and meditate on good words which will make me glad. Proverbs 12.25

I don't fret because of evildoers, and I won't wish harm on the wicked because they are having undeserved benefits. Proverbs 24.19

I am like a tree planted by water. I don't fear when the heat comes. I am not anxious in the year of drought. I don't cease to bear fruit. Jeremiah 17.8

I am not anxious about my natural life, what I shall eat or drink, nor about my body, what I shall wear. I refuse to have an anxious mind. Matthew 6.25

I am not anxious about tomorrow. Tomorrow will be anxious for itself. Matthew 6.34 I am not going to be anxious when on trial for the Lord. Mt 10.19 Mark 13.11 I am not going to be anxious about household problems. Luke 10.41 I am not to be with an anxious, doubtful mind. Luke 12.29

God wants me to free from worldly anxieties. I am concerned only for the affairs of the Lord. I cast all my anxieties (worries) upon the Lord, because He cares for me. 1 Peter 5.7

I do not fret or worry or get anxious because of wicked people. I am not envious of wrongdoers. Psalm 37.1

I am still before the LORD, and wait patiently for him. I do not get uptight or worry over the one who prospers through dirty tricks and dishonest methods. Psalm 37.7

I will hold myself from getting angry about this stuff. I will stop getting really angry with people. I'm not going to worry about it - because this kind of worrying just leads to worse evil. Psalm 37.8

It is vain to rise early and go to bed late and work anxiously. God gives me sleep because He loves me. Psalm 127.2

Anxiety in my heart would weigh me down. Instead I will receive and meditate on good words which will make me glad. Proverbs 12.25

I don't fret because of evildoers, and I won't wish harm on the wicked because they are having undeserved benefits. Proverbs 24.19

I am like a tree planted by water. I don't fear when the heat comes. I am not anxious in the year of drought. I don't cease to bear fruit. Jeremiah 17.8

I am not anxious about my natural life, what I shall eat or drink, nor about my body, what I shall wear. I refuse to have an anxious mind. Matthew 6.25

I am not anxious about tomorrow. Tomorrow will be anxious for itself. Mathew 6.34 I am not going to be anxious when on trial for the Lord. Mt 10.19 Mark 13.11 I am not going to be anxious about household problems. Luke 10.41 I am not to be with an anxious, doubtful mind. Luke 12.29

God wants me to free from worldly anxieties. I am concerned only for the affairs of the Lord. 1 Corinthians 7.32

The only thing to be concerned for is the welfare of the churches. 2Cor 11.28 Philippians 2.20 1 Corinthians 7.32

15. CONFESSIONS ON DEATH TO SIN

I reckon I'm really dead to sin. # Romans 6.11 My old nature was crucified with Jesus, so I am dead to myself also.

I reckon I'm really alive to God, in Jesus Christ my Lord. Romans 6.11 I do not let sin rule in my mortal body, to obey it in its lusts. Romans 6.12

I do not yield my members as instruments of unrighteousness to sin. I rather yield myself to God and my members as instruments of righteousness to God. Romans 6.12-6.13

Sin shall not Lord it over me, for I am not under the law, but under grace. Romans 6.14 I have been set free from sin, and am enslaved to righteousness.

Now having been set free from sin, and being enslaved to God, I have my fruit unto sanctification, and the end, everlasting life. Romans 6.18 6.22

Those who belong to Christ Jesus have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires. I give my life to Jesus even for this. Gal 5.24

I have been joined together with the Lord Jesus Christ in the likeness of His death, and so also I shall be joined together with Him in His resurrection power and life.

I know that my old man was crucified with Him, that the body of sin might be annulled, so that I no longer serve sin.

I have died and have been justified from sin. I died with Christ and I shall also live with Him. Romans 6.5 - 6.8

I always exercise and discipline myself - mortifying my body, deadening my carnal affections, bodily appetites and worldly desires, endeavouring in all respects to have a clear, unshaken, blameless

conscience, void of offense toward God and toward men. Acts 24.16

God directs my steps by His Word, and lets no iniquity have dominion over me. Psalm 119.133

16. PUTTING OFF THE OLD MAN

I have put off the old man with its deeds. (Colossians 3:9)

I reckon myself to be dead indeed to sin, but alive to God in Jesus Christ my Lord. (Romans 6:11)

I am Christ's and have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires. Therefore, I no longer have desire for any kind of impurity or sinful behaviour. (Galatians 5:19, 24)

I have been crucified with Christ, nevertheless I live; yet not I, but Christ lives in me. (Galatians 2:20)

I have died, and my life is hidden with Christ in God. (Colossians 3:3)

I have presented and do present my body a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable to God, which is my reasonable service. (Romans 12:1)

CONFESSION FOR THE NATIONS

Father, in the name of Jesus, we confess all the sins and iniquities of all lands of our ancestors, our leaders, and of the people. I include: violence, rejection of God, corruption, idols, idolaters, and robbery. Suspicion, injustice, bitterness, bloody-riots, pogroms, rebellion, and conspiracy. I also include shedding innocent blood, tribal conflicts, child-kidnapping, human trafficking, murder and occultism. Also mismanagement, negligence, theft, lying and false witnesses.

I Pray the following, in Jesus name:

FORGIVENESS AND HEALING

We plead for mercy and forgiveness. Lord, remember and redeem all lands.

Lord, please save all lands from destruction and judgment.

Let Your healing power begin to operate upon all lands.

AGAINST FORCES OF DARKNESS

Let all forces of darkness hindering the move of God, in all nations, be rendered impotent.

We command the spiritual strongman in charge of all nations to be bound and be disgraced.

Let every evil establishment and satanic tree, in all nations, be uprooted and cast into fire.

We come against every spirit of the anti-Christ working against all nations, and we command them to be permanently

frustrated.

We command the stones of fire from God to fall upon every nation's satanic operations and activities.

Let the desire, plans, devices and expectations of the enemy, for all nations, be completely destroyed.

Let every satanic curse, on all nations, fall down to the ground and die.

THE BLOOD OF JESUS

By the blood of Jesus, let all sins, ungodliness, idolatry and all vices cease in all lands.

We break every evil covenant and dedication made upon all lands.

We plead the blood of Jesus over all nations.

We decree the will of God for all lands, whether the devil likes it or not.

Let all contrary powers and authorities in all nation's, be confounded and be put to shame.

BINDING AND COVERING THE NATIONS

We close every satanic gate in all cities in all nations.

Let every evil throne in all nations be dashed to pieces.

We bind all negative forces operating in the lives of our leaders in all nations.

Lord, lay Your hands of fire and power upon all leaders in all nations.

We bind, rebuke and renounce all blood-drinking demons in all nations.

Let the Prince of Peace reign in all Government departments in all nations.

Let every anti-Gospel spirit be frustrated and be rendered impotent.

PRAYER FOR OUR LEADERS

Lord, please give us leaders in all the nations who will see their roles as a calling, instead of an opportunity to amass

wealth, power and fame.

Let all forms of ungodliness be destroyed by divine burning fire.

Lord, let all leaders in all nations be filled with divine understanding and wisdom.

Lord, let all leaders in all nations follow the counsel of God, not of man and demons.

Lord, let all leaders in all nations have wisdom and knowledge of God.

Lord, let all governments be of the kind that would only obtain direction and leading from God.

AGAINST IDOLS AND SATANIC RITUALS

Let every satanic altar in every nation, receive the fire of God and be burned to ashes.

We silence every satanic prophet, priest and practitioner and we forbid them from interfering with the affairs of all nations.

Let the blood of Jesus cleanse our lands from every type of blood pollution.

We command the fire of God to come upon all idols, sacrifices, rituals, shrines and all satanic thrones in all nations.

We break any conscious and unconscious agreement made between any people ,in any nation, and Satan.

We anoint, dedicate and claim all our cities for Jesus rule.

Let the blessings and presence of the Lord be experienced in all cities.

PRAYER AGAINST LAWLESSNESS

We decree total paralysis on lawlessness, immorality and drug addiction, in all nations.

Let the power, love and glory of God be established in all nations.

Let there be a strong thirst and hunger for God in the hearts of all people in all nations.

Lord, please deposit the spirit of revival into all nations.

THOSE WHO PROTECT US AND PROSPERITY

Lord, lay Your hands of power and might upon the Armed Forces, Police, Establishments, Institutions, Universities and

Colleges of all nations.

Let the resurrection power of the Lord Jesus Christ fall upon the economy of every nation.

Let there be fruitfulness and prosperity in all nations.

We command every satanic threat to the political, economic and social stability in all nations to be paralyzed.

We frustrate and bind every satanic external influence in all nations.

We command confusion and disagreement between the sons of the bondwoman planning to cage the nations.

We break any covenant between satanic influence and all nations leaders.

We paralyze every spirit of wastage of economic resources in all nations.

Let the spirit of borrowing depart completely from all nations.

SHOW MERCY AND MIGHT IN OUR AFFAIRS

Lord, show Yourself mighty in the affairs of all nations.

Let the Kingdom of Christ come into all nations.

Lord, do new things in all nations to show Your power and greatness to the heathen.

Let the Kingdom of our Lord Jesus Christ come into the heart of every person in every nation.

Lord, have mercy upon all nations.

Let the glory of all nations that has departed, be restored.

Let all non-evangelized areas in all nations, be reached with the Gospel of our Lord Jesus Christ.

Lord, send forth laborers into Your vineyard to reach the unreached in all nations.

We dismantle the strongholds of poverty in all nations.

Lord, install Your agenda in all nations.

EVIL DISGRACED & DISMANTLED

Let all powers of darkness operating in all educational institutions be bound and disgraced.

Let the satanic representatives of key posts in all nations, be bound and dismantled.

Let every evil spiritual throne behind all physical thrones, in all nations be dismantled.

Let every satanic covenant made on behalf of all nations, be nullified.

We trample upon the serpents and scorpions of ethnic clashes in all nations.

We decree a realignment of the situation around us to favor us, in all nations.

We dethrone every strange king installed in the spirit upon us, and in all nations.

Let all principalities, powers, rulers of darkness and spiritual wickedness in heavenly places militating against all nations be

bound and disgraced.

Let righteousness reign in all parts of all nations.